BANK ACCOUNT TERMS & CONDITIONS



BANK ACCOUNT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

CONTENTS

Definitions and Interpretation	1
Introduction	2
Appointment	2
Client Accounts	3
Client Money	3
Client Reporting	4
Delegation	4
Fees and Interest	4
Client Representations and Warranties	5
Client Acknowledgements	5
Proper Instructions	6
Non-Exclusivity	6
Conflicts of Interest	6
Liability and Indemnities	6
Legal Proceedings	7
Communication	7
Disclosures	7
Complaints	7
Privacy Notice	88
Confidentiality	8
Assignment	g
Termination and Consequences of Termination	g
Notices	10
Customer Due Diligence	10
Miscellaneous	10
Governing Law and Jurisdiction	11

1. Definitions and Interpretation

1.1. In these Te

"Account Agreement" means the declaration of trust and account agreement entered into

between the Company and the Client which forms part of the Agreement;

"Agre	ement"	means	the	Account	Agreement,	these
	Terms,	the	Fee	Schedule	and	the
	TOBs	and	includes	any	variation	of
	them	and	all	documents	entered	into
	as	supplement	al	to	them;	
"Affil	iates" means	any direct or		or parent of th	ne	indirect
	Company	and	any	direct	or	indirect
	subsidiary	of	any	such	parent	from
	time	to	time,	irrespective	•	the
count		Gtion, forma				or
	subsidiary	or	parent	(together	the	"EA
	Group		in	respec		each,
	any	of	their	respec		cucii,
	partne		uicii	respec	tive	
	•			a a marrilta mta	4	o conta:
	officers,	directors,	employees	, consultants	and	agents;
"Appl	icable Credit	Rating" mea	ns	Standard	&	Poor's
	Short- higher	Term Credit	Rating	g of	A-1	or
"Busii	nigner ness Day" me	,	a	day	(other	than
	-			•	`	
	a	public	holiday,	a	SGturday	or
	a	Sunday)	on	which	banks	in
	Cayman	Islands	are	authorised	to	open
	for	business;				
"Cayn	nan Islands A	anti-Money L	aundering R	ules"	includes	the
	Proceeds	of	Crime	Law	(2014	
	1100000		Crime	24	(2011	
	Revision)	(as	amended	from	time	to
	time)	and	any	other	law,	order,
	regulation	or	guidance	notes	made	
	thereunder	or	in	relation	thereto	or
	any	policies	and	guidelines	adopted	by
	the	Company,	in	each	case	relating
	to	the	prevention	and	detection	of
	money	laundering	•	the	financing	of
	terrorism;					
"Cash	Account"	means	an	account	in	the
	name	of	the	Company,	maintained	with
a lice	nsed bank, w	hich will hol	ld Client Moi	ney;	holds	or
"Cash	Equivalent A	Account"	means	the	portion	of
	•				•	
	Client	Money	held	on	account	(and,
	if .	applicable,		in	respect	of
	various	Cash	Equivalent		in	the
	name	of	the	Company	(or	with
	the	Company	acting	as	a	
	counterpart	y,	as	the	case	may

	be)	which,	after	initially	being	
	deposited	by	the	Client	into	a
	Cash	Account,	is	directed	by	the
	Company	(in	its	capacity	as	agent
	for	the	Client)	by	any	means
	deemed	appropriate		the	Company	into
	one	or	more	Cash	Equivalent	
"Casl		Asset" means			-1	,
(a)	an	asset	which	has	a	direct
		and	guaranteed	l claim	on	
		sovereigns	-	central	banks	which
	meets t	he criteria of				
(b)	a reverse SGtisfie	repurchase a	igreement wi	th a financia	l institution t	hat
		inition of "A _l		edit Rating".	, the collatera	ıl of
	Which is	s compromise exclusively		instrument	s in	(
	a);	exerasivery	01	instrument	, m	(
(c)		tent that the days prior no			lient	
		any investme Rating; and/o		nt with a	Cash Equiva	lent
	(ii)	any	interest	in	an	
		investment f	fund, the ass	ets of whic	h are compr	ised
					-	
		exclusively o				
		Equivalent R	ating; "Cash	Equivalent F	Rating" mean	s:
(a)	a	risk and	weighting	of	0%;	
(b)	a Moody	's rating of A	Aaa to Aa3;	or		
(c)	an	S&P/Fitch AA-,	rating	of	AAA	to
Mini	mum Capital	ith the Rule Requiremen	ts published	by the	uidelines on	
		Monetary Aut n time to time		s decided by	the Compan	iy at
		e person spec ent and inclu				
	from	or	under	such	person;	
"Client Acc		means	each	Cash	Account	
		ent Account, s				
	-		-		-	
	-	all money v				
		to, a Client,		ne avoidance	of any	
doubt, shall		any interest of	or other			
income money;	that	may	accrue	on	such	
"Company"	' means SG I	BANK & Tru	st Ltd., a coi	npany incorp	orated in	
the Caymai	n Islands and	having its r	egistered off	ice at P.O. E	Box 1344,	
EW House,	20 Genesis	Close, George	e			
Town,	Grand	Cayman	KY11108,	Cayman	Islands;	

"Controller public	" means authority,	a agency	natural or	or other	legal body	person, which,	tranSGct Account;	in	relation	to	a	Client	
alone	or	jointly	with	others,	determines	the	"Parties" me	eans	the	parties	to	the	
Purposes	and	means	of	Processing of	of		Account	Agreement;		•			
Personal	Data;												
"Credit Dov	wngrade Eve	nt"	has	the	meaning		"Placement"	' means	Client	Money	placed	in	a
ascribed	thereto	in	clause	4.3(a)	of	these	Cash	Equivalent	Account	in	the	name	of
Terms;				()			the	Company	(with	the	Company	acting	as
"Data Prote	etion I avy"	means	all	applicable	data		bare	trustee	for	the	Client	in	
							the	1 1.15	of	41	Client	M	
protection		including,	with	effect	from	25	tne	holding	01	the	Chem	Money,	
May	2018,	the	General	Data	Protection					c	a	CI	
Regulation	(Regulation	(EU)	2016/679)	including	any		and	as	agent	for	the		in
amendmen	ts	thereto	and	any	applicable		the	placement		Client	Money	in	a
consequent	ial	national	data	protection le	egislation	and	Cash	Equivalent	Account);				
guidance	and	codes	of	practice	issued	by	"Processor"	means	a	natural/legal	l	person	
any	relevant	European	data	protection s	upervisory					· ·		•	
authority,	including	the	Irish	Data	Protection		who	performs	any	operation	or	set	of
Commissio	ner	and	the	European	Data		operations of	on	Personal	Data	whether	or	
Protection	Board;	and	the	terms	'Personal	Data',							
'data	controller',	'data	processor'	and	'process'	shall	not	by	automated 1	neans	such	as	
have	the	meanings	given	to	them	under							
Data	Protection	Law.					recording,	organiSGtio	n,	structuring,	storage,	adaptation o	r
							alteration,	retrieval,	consultation	,	use,	disclosure	by

"Deposit" mea	ans	Client	Money	placed	in	a							
Company (v	account with	in the the	the Company Client	name acting in	of as the	the bare holding	transmissio available,	n, disseminat		or combination	otherwise n, restriction,	making erasure	or
of the	he he lient	Client Client Money	Money, in	and any a	as subsequent p	agent	destruction.	er Instruction	ns" has	the	meaning	ascribed	
Account);							theret	o in clause 1	1 these Tern	ns;		of	
"Fee Schedule	" means	the	fee	schedule	detailing	the							
Company's fe	ees mended	for	the	Service,	as	may	"S&P/	Fitch"	means	both	of	Standard	&
	me,	or the	replaced current	entirely version	from of	time which		Poor's	Financial	Services	LLC	and	
can be	e	found	on	the	Website;		Fitch	Ratings Inc.,	each credit	rating agency	, ;	a	
"Fees" means		any	fees	payable	directly	to							
		by	the	Client	under	the	"Servi	ce" has	the	meaning	ascribed	thereto	in
		which not	for include	the any	avoidance fees	of payable		clause	4	of	these	Terms;	
,		Company	or	the	Client	payaore	"Stand	lard & Poor's	s Short Term	Credit Rating	g"	has	
*	-	the	Company	or	otherwise) to	o		the	meaning	given	to	the	
		party	service	provider;	41 4 .				Ü	Ü			
"FX Service" l		the	meaning	ascribed	thereto	in		term	Short-Term	Issue	Credit	Ratings	
clause 4.	.2(b)	of	these	Terms;				on	the	website	found	at	
"Indemnified I	Persons" ha	ıs	the	meaning	ascribed	thereto					c	45	
in cl	lause	14.2	of	these	Terms;			time;	ardandpoors.	com	from	time	to
"licensed bank	c" means ar	ny	bank	or	financial								
institution in regulated or		any supervised	jurisdiction t by	that the	is local		"Suita	ble Cash Acc		the	meaning	ascribed	
regulator to ca	arry on dep	osit busines	s in that juris	diction;	taking			thereto	in	clause			
"Losses" mean	ns	any	direct	or	indirect	or	4.3(a)	of	these	Terms;			
consequential payment, in	nterest,	loss, demand,	cost, claim,	charge, actions,	expense, proceeding,	suit,	"these	Terms" mea conditions;	ns	these	terms	and	
detriment, adv	verse	legal judgment,	fees, order	liability, or	obligation, other		"TOBS	5"	means	the	Company's	General	
SGnction of		any	kind;					Terms	of	Business	as	amended	
"Moody's" me	eans Moody	y's Investors	Service, rati	ing agency;	a	credit		from	time	to	time;		
"Online Portal	l" means	the	internet	banking	platform		"Treas	ury Bill"	means	a	short-term	government	
accessible at			anking.EAba		through	which		issued	treasury	instrument v	vith	a	
the C things, (i)	lient	is access	able information	to,	among the	other balance		Standard	&	Poor's	Short	Term	
of a	*	Client	Account,	and	(ii)	balance		Credit higher;	Rating	of	AA-	or	
							"we",	"us"	and	"our"	refer	to	
								the	Company;				
							"Web	site"	means	(i)			
							(17)			m/client-logi		or	
							(11) SU	cii otner wer	sue on whic	the Compa	ny posts noti	ces or	

publishes information about products, rates, fees, Trust Companies Law (2013 commissions, costs, charges or the Revision) (as amended from subject matter of these Terms, as time to time).

such websites may be replaced, However, the Service does substituted or amended from time to not include the provision of time; and "you" and "your" refer to the any investment advice.

Client. Accordingly, any comment made by

any officer or employee of 1.2. Words importing the singular shall

	he Company sl all include the		-		_		-	us to b	e relied							
	case,	and	references	-	a	person				upon	1	by	you.		The	
sha	all include an	individual, fi	rm, Company	y strongly rec	commends	company, co	rporation, u	nincorpo	orated body	of that	you sh	ould seek	person	s and	any go	vernment
enti	ity and approp	riate indepen	dent professi	onal shall in	clude any su	accessors in	title, investn	nent, fin	nancial and/o	r legal	permit	ted assign	ees and	permi	tted tra	insferees.
adv	vice relevant to	your particu	ılar circumsta	inces before (i)											
.3. Unles	ss otherwise	stated,	references i	in	these	Terms	entering	into	the		Agree	ment,		to		
	"clauses"	are	to	clauses	of											
				ting t	ha Sarvica	these Terms.									(ii)	reques
				ung u	iic Scivice,	mese reims.									(iii)	reques
				ting a	ny	other									,	•
	rences in these tranSGctions o													re to be	execut	te
	supplemen	nted	or	replaced	from	time				accept	s	and	agree	es	that	
	to	time.								the		Client	is		entire	•
1.5 Defe		Tomas to on	4	d fo (i)					مستسمان المستسم	•	nsible f		their		invest	
	rences in these associated wit		y decisions ai	nd for (1) ena	ctment or a	provision of	any recognis	sing and	i considering	any en	actme	nt snaii inc	iude in	at enac	tment	or
	provision	as	amended,	modified,	re-enacted	l or				decisio	ns	which,	for		the	
	replaced	from	time	to	time.					avoida	nce	of	doub	t,	includ	les
										the		express	reco	gnition	ı that	it
1.6. The l	headings in the		is not relying	g and inserte	d for conven	ience only a	nd shall will	not rely	on not affe		•			oany ir		
	these	Terms.								regard the		and Company	(ii) of		advisi	ng
1.7. The I	Parties acknow	ledge that the	e defined mat	ter which the	y wish term	s are highly	technical and	d confir	m the Comp			company	01		uny	
	that	they	have	read,	paid					into		account	wher	1	execu	ting
pai	rticular attenti	on to and und	lerstand each	tranSGctions	on their beh	alf; defined	i term.									-
							((b)	when	provid Compa	_	the may	Servi trans		the your	
2. IN	TRODUCTIO	N		monies	between	different	licensed			•		,			,	
						annonom	noonsoa			banks,		intermedia	ries		or	
	agreemen	t with	2.1. T	These Terms Company.		part should	of		your	financ	ial	institution	s from		time	to
										time,		as	we		think	
									carefully		read	and		cons		these
									Terr acknowleds		appro	priate. You	1	unde	erstand,	
bet	fore you comp	lete the Acco	ount accept as	nd agree that					ucknowied _g	50,						
	Agreemen	t.	Execution	by	you	of										
	d			c					your	•	monie	s may	У	(i)		in
	the	Account	Agreement	confirms	your					respec	t .	of	a		Cash	
	acceptanc	e of	and	agreement	to	these				respec		J1			Cush	
										Accou	nt,	be	place	d	entire	ly
	rms. It is reco															
yo	u retain a copy Terms	for	future	reference.		These										
									than one li	censed 1	bank,	Terms rela	ate sole	ly to t	he Serv	ice. and
	in respect of		~													
W	e may also pro services	ovide other a	products,		, so	agreed										
	SCI VICCS	and	products,	11	30	agreed				be		allocated	to		a	
bet you	tween us, which	h are not sin	igle Cash Equ	iivalent Asset	, or governe	ed by these T	erms and wh	nich ma	y require su	pplemer	ntal or	separate d	ocumei	ntation	to be s	signed by
2.2. You	should	also	note	that:												
(a)	the	Company	is	regulated	by	the										
(-)		Cayman	Islands	Monetary	Authority											
		under	the	Banks	and											
		to	more	than	one	Cash										
		Equivalent your Clien	: Asset. t Money as ba	The are trustee for	Company you but act	holds s										

as	your	disclosed	agent	when
placing,	receiving	or	depositing	your
monies	and	has	no	
obligation	to	refund	your	monies
in	the	event	of	a
default	or	non-payme	nt	by
the	selected	licensed	bank(s),	
intermediar	y,	financial	institution	or
financial	instrument	counterparty	/,	as
the	case	may	be.	
The	Client	assumes	all	credit
risk	on	(i)	the	
licensed	banks	with	which	Client
Money	is	held,	(ii)	the
intermediar	ries	or	financial	
institutions	through	which	the	Client
Money	passes	in	connection	with
a	Placement	and/or	a	Cash
Equivalent	Account,	(iii)	any	
financial	instrument	counterparty	/	to
a	Cash	Equivalent	Asset	in
which	a	Placement	has	been
made,	and	(iv)	the	Cash
Equivalent	Assets	to	which	Client
Money	under	a	Cash	
Equivalent	Account	is	placed,	and
the	Client	shall	not	hold
the	Company	or	any	of
its	Affiliates	responsible	for	any
Losses	suffered	or	incurred	by
the	Client	arising	out	of
(x)	any	default	or	
insolvency	of	such	licensed	banks
in	relation	to	a	Cash
Account,	or	(y)	default	or
insolvency	in	relation	to	a

		Cash	Equivalent	Account,	including	the		such	advice	from		the	C	Compan	ıy.
		default	or	insolvency	of	an	The Company strong professional tax advice								
		intermediary	/,	a	financial		the Agreement, (ii) re Company, or (iv) inst				_	-			
		institution, a	ı	financial	instrumen	t	The Client understandersponsible for the m	ds, acknowl	ledges, acc	epts and a	igrees	that t	the Clie	ent is e	entirely
		counterparty	7	or	any	other	Company of any mat	ter which the	y wish		-				ing the
		party	in	connection	with	a	the Company to take behalf.	e into accot	int when e	executing	ransc	Jellons	on th	eir	
		Cash	Equivalent	Asset;			3. APPO	DINTMENT							
(c)	in	some	or	all	respects	the	3.1. The Client's app		the Com	pany to pr	ovide	the Se	ervice s	shall o	only be
		regulatory	regime	applying	in	the	completed upon the	Company'				the Cli		ollowin	
		Cayman	Islands	and/or	in	the	111 14	receipt	of	a	,	duly		executed	~
		home	jurisdiction	of	the		and delivered Accound documentation and in	nformation as	the Comp	any may r	equire	e.			
		licensed	banks	in	relation	to	3.2. The Client unders be obliged to provide		_	ccepts and	agree	es that t	he Con	npany v	vill not
		a	Cash	Account	or	the	requirements have b	time een complete	as ely SGtist	all fied to the	full	due extent		liligence ed by 1	
		intermediari	es,	financial	institutions	and	Company. For the av	oidance of do	oubt, neithe be	er the Com liable	ıpany	nor any	,	ate	
		financial	instrument	counterparti	es		Losses suffered or inc of the Service. In part	curred by the	e Client in	connection	with				ovision
		connected to)	a	Cash		(a) the Company may	-			l/or f	inancia	l inforn	nation	
		Equivalent A	Account	or	Cash		or		documen	itation		from	ť	he	
		Equivalent A	Asset,	including	any		Client regarding the s	source of mo	nies to be	allocated to					
		compenSGti	ion	or	investor		Placement or	the	a so	Deposi ource	of		the	C	Client's
		protection ar	rrangements,		may	be			before	agreeir	_	to	•	rovide	vhether
		different	from	those	of	your	the Service or at ar circumstances, the	ny time after	Deposits	or Placen	nents	have b	een ma	ade. In	these
		own	jurisdiction;	and				other trans	for SGction or	a the Client'	s sou	Depos rce of w		Placem nay imp	
(d)	the	Company	reserves	the	right	to		the Compa arrange a	-	-				acknow	ledges
		delegate	the	performanc	e	of		accepts							_
		any	duties	arising	hereunder	to		and agree	tion					nation	
		any	Affiliate.					in a form a of monies t	to be used	for a Depo	-	regardi	ing (i) tl	he sour	rce
2.3. The	Company	does	not	provide	tax	advice	2	the Client	Placeme 's source of		or (i	other		anSGcti ation, i	, ()
	and acknowledg	the es.	Client accepts	understands and	agrees	that		and/or bacl	_			_			•
	the	Client	has	not	received	any		to any Dep Company r							
		_	ees to pro on as the Cor		information equire or requ	or iest	3.3. The Cl	lient agrees to	Ü	Ü	•				Chent.
		to bring its enquiries	to	a	SGtisfactory	,		documenta easonably red	tion	as		it	n	nay 1	request
		conclusion;					indiv	idual entities	and SGtis	factory ex	planat	tions of	tranSG	ections	
(b)		n and docume and all signat		-		und of	orde	r that the Cor from	time	to		time	. 0	of	the
		acement or only before any			•	vided to	0	Cayman The	Islands time	Anti-N at	Ioney	Laund which	-	Rules. such	
	tranSGctio	n will be arr	anged and			vide al	1								
		or document pany may rec		est; and											
(0)	failure		provide	information		or									
(c)	ianuic	documentation source	•	regarding	the	or									

source of

monies

to

be

used

information and documentation is required and the form in which it shall be delivered to the Company shall be determined by the Company in its absolute discretion.

4. CLIENT ACCOUNTS

4.1. Following consideration and acceptance by the Company of the Client's application to receive the Service, the Client shall transfer to the

Company, or otherwise place under the Company's control, a sum of money (which, for the avoidance of will he subject minimum a amount) and which the Company will hold on bare trust Client. the

- 4.2. The shall following Company provide the services to and for the benefit the Client (the "Service") as agent:
 - (a) exercising discretion granted to the
 Company (which, for the avoidance of doubt, will be limited to
 choosing the Cash Account) in
 respect of a Deposit,
 with such discretion exercisGble immediately after Client Money is
 placed on initial Deposit;
 - (b) foreign exchange and currency transfers. Arranging to transfer Client Money into other currencies based on specific instructions received from the Client

Service");

and

date

Downgrade Event,

Placement of Client Money. The discretion the granted to Company will be limited choosing the Cash Equivalent consequently, the Account (and, Cash

Equivalent Asset(s)) in respect of such Placement.

4.3. In providing the Service, the Company agrees that:

(the

(a) Cash Accounts will only be opened with licensed banks that SGtisfy the Applicable Credit Rating. In the event that a licensed bank with whom a Cash Account is held suffers a credit rating the downgrade below Applicable Credit Rating "Credit Event"), the Company shall (i) use promptly reasonable endeavours to transfer money held in such Cash Account bank Cash Account with another licensed that SGtisfies, licensed banks that SGtisfy the Applicable Credit Rating Cash "Suitable (a Account"), and (ii) extent Suitable Cash Account is not reasonably available to the Company within

months

the

Credit

give notice to the Client setting out that another Suitable Cash Account has not yet been established;

		Cash Accou	ant has not ye	et been estab	nsneu;	
(b) С	Equivalent Equivalent credit ratin Cash Equi Company s Client Mo (ii) a Suita	nt Assets, the subject Rating. In t Asset to wh g downgrade valent Asset hall use rease endeavours ney to (i) an	to t	Cash Equival a t a Cash doney has be e rating of th the Cash Ec promptly er, Cash Eq ch time as a	ent Accounts Cash en allocated	suffers a ing, the the et(s), or le Cash
(c)	allocated t	of Client Mo Placement o Cash Equiv mpany is re	and valent Assets	which , the Client	has is entitled to of the spec	
		to	which	the	Client	Money
		has	been	or	is	•
		allocated	within	24	hours	of
						01
		such	Client	request;	and	
(d)	care	_			will take reavailable for y	ou at that
		(i)	the	size	and	type
	of the tran				ange rates qu	
		banks with				ioica by
		opened.		Given	the	
		aforementi	oned	criteria,	it	is
	possible th	at on certain	occasions. t	he exchange	rate	
		obtained	may	not	be	as
		favourable	•	the	exchange	rate
		that		be	available	from
	a 11		may			HOIII
	other licen	sed banks, in	termediaries	or financial	institutions.	
4.4. In	providing	the	Service,	the	Client	
	understands	i,	acknowledg	ges,	accepts	and
	agrees	that:	•		•	
(a)	the	Company's	obligations t	'n	perform	the
(a)	uic		_		•	
		Service	are	contractual		nature
		and	are	distinct	and	
		separate	from	the	trust	
		obligations	imposed	by	the	
		Account	Agreement			

(b)

the

Company can

on

Money

place

Deposit;

the

(c)	the	Company	can	undertake	Placements	in
		respect	of	and	with	
		the	Client	Money;	PAGI	E 8
(d)	the	Company	does	not	assume	
		and	is	not	subject	to
		any	fiduciary	obligations	as	
		trustee	in	respect	of	
		the	performance	•	of	
		the	Service	and,	for	
		the	avoidance	of	doubt,	
		the	Company	performs	the	
		Service	as	an	agent	of
		the	Client;			
(e)	a	Client	Account	cannot	and	
		will	not	be	permitted	to
		have	a	negative	balance;	
		and				
(f)	the	FX	Service	is	available	in
		all	circulating	world	currencies	
		that	are	recognised l	egal	
		tender	in	a	territory	
		whose	currency	is	approved	by
		the	Company	from	time	to
		time.		The	Client	is
		responsible	for	verifying	the	
		correctness	of	all	tranSGction	
		advices,	receipts	or	statements	
		received	from	the	Company	in
		respect	of	the	FX	
		Service	and	is	required	to
		notify	the	Company	within	
		48	hours	of	the	
		receipt	of	each	such	
		document, o	of	any	alleged	
		inaccuracies	s or	any	tranSGction	
		that	has	not	been	
		effected	in	accordance	with	
		the	Client's	instructions		
CLIE	ATT MONTEN					

5. CLIENT MONEY

Client

5.1. Client	Money	will	be	held	in	
	one	or	a	combination	n of	
	Client	Accounts	in	the	name	of
	the	Company.	The	Client	understands	,
	acknowledg	ges,	accepts	and	agrees	
	that	Client	Money	held	in	a
	Client	Account	is	subject	to	
	these	Terms	and	(i)	to	
	the	extent	that	the	Client	
	Account	is	a	Cash	Account,	
	the	terms	and	conditions	of	
	the	licensed	bank	with	whom	
	the © 201	8ca⊊C BA	McoontTru	ı sı Ltd. Al	l neg ļņts rese	rved
	and	(ii)	to	the	extent	
	that	the	Client Acco	unt	is	a
Cash	Equivalent	Account, the	he terms a	nd condition	ns (x) of the	e

Cash Equivalent Asset, and (y) governing the underlying Cash Equivalent Asset.

- 5.2. The Company reserves the right to establish Cash Accounts with any licensed bank which SGtisfies the Applicable Credit Rating. Whilst the Company will exercise reasonable care in the selection of the licensed banks with whom Cash Accounts are maintained, the Company shall not be liable for any acts or omissions by, or the insolvency of, any such licensed bank. Accordingly, your credit risk in respect of monies held in Cash Accounts will be solely with the licensed banks concerned.
- 5.3. The Company reserves the right to make Placements in Cash Equivalent Assets. Whilst the Company will exercise reasonable care in the selection of the (i) intermediary (if any, and which may include a financial institution) through which Client Money passes or is held prior to being allocated to a Cash Equivalent Asset, and (ii) Cash Equivalent Assets to which Client Money is allocated, the Company shall not be liable for any acts or omissions by, or the insolvency of, any such intermediary, financial institution or financial instrument

 counterparty, as the case may be. Accordingly, your credit risk in respect of Client Money in placed in a Cash Equivalent Account will be solely with the intermediaries (if any), financial institutions (if any) and financial instrument counterparties concerned
- on a daily basis. Client Money will not be co-mingled with the Company's own monies, except to the extent that (i) a portion of that Client Money (while on Deposit or in Placement) becomes payable

 as a fee or cost due to the Company under the Agreement, or (ii) interest (which belongs to the Company) accrues on the Client Money while it is on Deposit or in Placement.

5.4. Client Money will be tracked on an individual basis and recorded in accounts

- 5.5. The Client Money shall be held on bare trust by the Company for the Client as beneficial owner, subject to the terms of the Agreement. As a result, the Company has no beneficial interest in the Client Money.
- held 5.6. Client Money or controlled by the more Company in one or Client Accounts will be co-mingled with monies held for our other you clients using the Service However will not have any entitlement or claim to any monies held in Client Accounts other than the monies that are apportionable to you.
- 5.7. The Client shall not be entitled to, nor have any claim on, any interest or other income that may accrue on any Client Money held or controlled in any Client Account.
- 5.8. The Client understands, acknowledges, accepts and agrees that the Company does not accept physical cash, nor will it allow monies to be withdrawn in the form of physical cash.
- 5.9. Should the Client wish to withdraw monies, the Client will be required to provide Proper Instructions to Company and the amount (i) held its Client Money by on behalf of the or

Company in the Cash Account(s), or (ii) allocated to a Placement will need to be sufficient to meet such withdrawal request.

- 5.10. The Company shall the Client monies withdrawn by for direct transfer account an held in the Client's name. The Company, in its sole and absolute discretion, reserves the right to decline to effect payment of monies withdrawn to the direct credit of any third party.
- 5.11. On receipt of Client Money, the Company must be SGtisfied as to the source of the Client Money. If the Company is not SGtisfied, for any reason, as to the source of Client Money (in which case it is understood that such reasons need

not be disclosed to the Client by the Company), you understand, acknowledge, accept and agree that the Company may

be bound by law to terminate the provision of the Service.

5.12. The Company will not be obliged to take or refrain from taking any action whatsoever in relation to the Client Money which could in the sole opinion of the Company result in a contravention of any law or regulation in force from time to time in the Cayman Islands or in

any other place whatsoever. The Company reserves the right not to comply with any request which in

the sole opinion of the Company could potentially result in any such contravention or which

in the sole opinion of the

Company could result in any damage to the reputation or good standing of the Company or any of its Affiliates.

5.13. The	Client	hereby	authorises t	he	Company to
	deduct	from	the	Client	Money:
(a)	the	Company's	remuneratio	n,	fees
		and	expenses	payable by	the Client;
(b)	any	costs	or	charges	(i)
		levied	by	any	licensed
		banks with	which	the	Client
		Money	is	held,	(ii)
		incurred	or	payable	in
		respect	of	any	Placement,
	or	(iii)	levied	or	incurred
		in	connection	with	tranSGctions
	effected	on			
		behalf	of	the	Client; and'

 any taxes or other statutory or governmental fees, charges, duties

or costs that are due to be paid by the Client.

6. CLIENT REPORTING

6.1. The Company provide Client with online to an up-to-date snapshot showing statements of anv Client Money held (i) in a Cash Account, or (ii) in connection with a Cash Equivalent Account.

- 6.2. The Company will issue the relevant account statements at the frequency and in a manner advised to the Client from time to time.
- 6.3. The Client is responsible for verifying the correctness of all statements in respect of Client Accounts received from the Company and is required to notify the Company within 60 days of the preparation date of each document, of any alleged omissions from, or additions wrongly made to, or inaccurate entries reflected therein. The Client acknowledges and agrees to provide the Company with all information that is necessGry for the Company to investigate any alleged error, discrepancy or irregularity.
- 6.4. The Company shall not be responsible for the Client's reliance on any information in any statement, or related information that is subsequently updated or corrected or for the accuracy or timeliness of information supplied by the Company.

7. DELEGATION

7.1. The Company shall be entitled to powers delegate its and duties under Agreement, in whole or part, to any person or persons, upon such terms and conditions, as the Company shall think fit and may employ agents to perform any administration, dealing and ancillary services required to enable it to provide the Service under the Agreement, provided that the Company shall, upon the appointment of any such delegate, be SGtisfied and shall continue to be SGtisfied that such delegate is a fit and proper person and, in such circumstances, the Company shall not be liable for any act, omission or default by, nor the insolvency of, any such delegate.

7.2. By agreeing to these Terms, the Client gives its consent to the disclosure of information reasonably required by any delegate of the Company to perform the functions delegated to such delegate. For the avoidance of doubt, this disclosure will extend to information relating to the Client or any transGctions of the Client in accordance with clause 19.2 of these Terms, notwithstanding that such information may be deemed confidential.

8. FEES AND INTEREST

8.1. In consideration for the Services, the Company shall receive the remuneration, fees and expenses in the amounts set out in or

the

determined in accordance with

Fee Schedule, and in the manner and at the times provided for in the Fee

Schedule.

8.2. The Client (i) acknowledges and understands that the Fee Schedule is published on the Website, and (ii) hereby agrees that it has received (or has been

given	the	opportuni	ty to	access
and	read	a	copy	of
the	Fee	Schedule	in	force
on	the	date	hereof.	

8.3. The Company may modify the Fee Schedule at any time, subject to providing a minimum of 30 days' notice of such change to

the Client. For the avoidance of doubt, the publication of the Fee Schedule on the Website will be deemed to have SGtisfied the notice requirement under this clause 8.3, which such modifications

to be deemed effective from the later of (i) 30 days after the date of such publication, or (ii) the date on which the modified Fee Schedule is stated to take effect.

8.4. The Client shall not be entitled to any interest or other income that accrues on any Client Money

(including,	without	limitation,	any	(i)	interest
that	is	paid	by	any	
licensed	bank	on	amounts	standing	to
the	credit	of	a	Cash	

Account, and (ii) any amounts accrued or earned in respect of any Placement in a Cash Equivalent Account) and it is hereby agreed that the Company need not account

to the Client for any such interest or other income and any and all interest or other income shall be retained exclusively by the Company.

8.5. For the avoidance of doubt, and in accordance with these Terms and Clause 4.1 of the Account Agreement, the Company is entitled to retain all interest credited or other income accrued

on the Client Money and has the discretion to use any such

interest credited or other income

in the manner of its choosing. The Company shall therefore have the right (but not the obligation) to make payments to the Client as it sees fit, at its sole discretion and in the manner and amount and for the period of its choosing. Any payment made by the Company to the Client shall have no relation or connection to any

interest credited or other income

crued

on Client Money by the
Company, SGve that the amount being paid to the Client may (at
the Company's sole discretion) have been calculated by reference to
such credited interest or other income

accrued. It is expressly understood by the Client that payment by the Company to any client shall not: (a) entitle the client receiving the payment to further or continued payment; (b) create any expectation of continued payment by the Company; or (c) entitle any other client to any payment by the

Company whatsoever.

8.6. The Client understands, acknowledges, accepts, agrees and confirms that the Client is liable for all

costs, fees and expenses incurred by the Company that arise as a result of the application of a negative interest rate to any Client Account from time to time, along with an administration fee

8.7. The Client further agrees that the Company may at any time, without prejudice to any other

rights it may have, and without prior notice or demand

for payment, combine, consolidate or merge (in cases of multiple Client Accounts for one Client), or apply or set off all

or any part of any money held in any Client Account towards payment of any

amount owed by the Client to the Company. For the purposes of this clause 8.6 the Company may effect such charges or repayments at such time or such rates as it may

think reasonable and may effect such transfers between such Client Accounts as it considers necesSGry.

9. CLIENT REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

- 9.1. The Client represents and warrants that
 on the date of its
 execution of the Account Agreement:
 - the Client has full capacity, power, and authority to engage the Company to provide the Service;
 - (b) the Client Money is not and does not comprise

Criminal Property or Terrorist Property (both as defined in the Cayman Islands AntiMoney Laundering Rules) and is free from all security interests, liens, charges, mortgages, encumbrances and other third party interests whatsoever (the "Encumbrances"), and the Client undertakes that no Encumbrances will arise from any acts or omissions on the part of the Client other than as agreed between the Company and the Client from time to time;

(c) unless the Client has notified the Company in writing that the Client is acting on behalf of any third party or parties and has provided the Company with the name or names of the third party or

> parties concerned, the Client receiving not the Service behalf of anv third party or parties and is the legal and beneficial owner of the Client Money;

- (d) the Client undertakes not to deal, except through the Company, with any of the Client Money and not to authorise anyone else to deal in the Client Money other than with the prior written agreement of the Company;
- (e) the Client warrants that anv information which the Client has provided the Company to in relation to the Client's status. residence and domicile for taxation purposes is complete and correct all and in respects, the Client provide agrees to any further information as the Company may require to perform the Service and/or to to comply all laws, regulations and/or guidelines that are applicable to the Client or the Company from time to time:
- (f) the Client will notify the Company promptly if there is any material change in any information the Client has provided to the Company pursuant to the Agreement and/or

the Service, and will provide such other relevant information as the Company may from time to time request. The Client understands, acknowledges, accepts and agrees that any failure to provide such information may adversely affect the quality and/or scope of the Service provided by the Company and the ability of Company to provide the Service;

 (g) the Client has not given to the Company any instructions that will require or involve any unlawful act or contain any

falsehood and all information given will be accurate and not misleading;

 the Client will comply with all filing requirements in any applicable jurisdiction and pay all

taxes and governmental duties payable by the Client in connection with Client Money and provision to it of the Service;

- the Client shall disclose or procure the disclosure to the Company, on request, of any and all information about the Client or concerning Client Money;
- (j) Client subject the not to anv **SGnctions** or breach of any laws or regulations anywhere the world:
- (k) the Client will not cause nor permit anything to be done which will or may impose any civil or

criminal liability or penalty
on the Company or
any of its Affiliates;
and

- (I) the Client is not an ordinary resident company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
- 9.2 The representations and warranties contained in clause deemed Client be repeated bv the each the Agreement is on day in force.

10. CLIENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

- 10.1. The Client understands, acknowledges, accepts and agrees that:
 - (a) whilst the Company will exercise reasonable care in the selection of licensed Cash whom Accounts are maintained, the Company does not give any undertaking or guarantee in relation to the creditworthiness of any such licensed bank and

relation to the creditworthiness of any such licensed bank and the Company shall not be liable for any acts or omissions by, or the insolvency of, any

such licensed bank. Accordingly the credit risk or other relevant risk in respect of monies held on Cash Accounts will be borne solely by the Client;

(b) whilst the Company will exercise reasonable care in the selection of the

intermediaries, financial institutions and financial instrument counterparties engaged in connection with

the Cash Equivalent Account and the Cash Equivalent Assets, the Company does not give any undertaking or guarantee in relation to the creditworthiness of any such intermediaries,

financial institutions or financial instrument counterparties and the Company shall not be liable for any acts or omissions by, or the insolvency of, any such intermediaries, financial institutions or financial instrument counterparties. Accordingly the credit risk or other relevant risk in respect of monies allocated to a Placement will be borne solely by the Client; and Company when the executes (c) tranSGction on behalf of the Client with third party a always institution, there is degree of risk that the third party institution may fail to act upon the instruction given or in the manner expected. 10.2. The Client understands, acknowledges, accepts and agrees that if the Company suspects or notified that: the Service is being used for illegal purposes; (a) (b) there is a dispute over the beneficial ownership of part or all of the Money held; (c) any Client Money is not owned by the Client; (d) any Client Money may be connected to any individual or entity that is the subject of a regulatory or international SGnction: there is a dispute between the directors and/or officers of the Client; (e) (f) there is an insolvency, bankruptcy, winding up or dissolution of the Client. then. the matter resolved the Company's SGtisfaction, the Company may freeze the Client Money in whole or in part and refuse to provide the Service. In such circumstances, the Company may take professional advice and neither Company nor liability for any Affiliates shall its incur anv Losses suffered or incurred by the Client or other person. any 10.3. The Client understands, acknowledges, accepts and agrees that the Company reserves the right to refuse to provide or continue to provide the Service for the Client on behalf of or for the benefit of any third parties at

Company's sole and absolute discretion. The Company may do

this without giving the Client any reason.

				•	
	10.4. The	Client	hereby	acknowledg	ges
		and	agrees	that	the PAGE 12
		Client	has	taken	independent
		tax	advice	in	connection
		with	the	Client's	obligations
		and	liability	(if	any) to
		account	to	the	revenue
		authorities	in	the	Client's
		country	of	domicile	or
		residence	in	relation	to
		any	tranSGction	ns that	are
		effected	in	connection	with
		the	Service.		
	10.5. The	Client	understand	s,	acknowledges,
		accepts	and	agrees	that
		where	a	Client	Account
		has	no	activity	other
		than	charges	and	interest
		debited	or	credited	by
		the	Company	for	a
		continuous	period	of	at
		least	seven	(7)	years, or
		as	stipulated	within	Cayman
		Islands	Anti-Mone	y Laundering	Rules,
		the	Company	shall	make
		reasonable	attempts	to	communicate
		with	the	Client,	before
		having	the	right	to
		take	steps	to	close
		the	Client	Account	without
		further	notice.		
RO]	PER INSTRU	UCTIONS			
	C	1	•.	A CC 1: 4	

11. F	PROP	ER INSTRU	CTIONS					
11.1. Т		e Company and rely upon, the Client and act		its and to	Affiliates are deal	s may authorised by with		
		and	act	upon,	instruction	ns, document	s	
		and	information	("Proper	Instructions	"):		
(a)	given such persor	or as as have be	purportedly en notified i	-	by		
		from time to	o time the C	lient to the			by	
		Agreement upon such notification	a on the Cli (and the Co	ent's beha mpany and i nplete and a	having s, documents If in respect ts Affiliates ccurate until	t of the may rely the Client	to	

© 2018 AGC BANK & Trust Ltd. All rights reserved

(b) given (i) through Online Portal, or (ii) by letter, or email to

banking@EAbank.com (on the proviso that the Company has approved this mode of instruction, in writing and in advance of such instruction or in circumstances where the Online Portal is unavailable).

- 11.2. Neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates are under any duty to make any enquiry as to the genuineness or authenticity of any Proper Instructions.
- 11.3. Neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates shall be obliged to take or omit to take any action pursuant to Proper Instructions where in the opinion of the Company, such Proper Instructions are not sufficiently clear and/or precise

contain not sufficient information to allow the Company to comply materially with such Proper Instructions.

- 11.4. Neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates shall incur any liability in respect of any action taken or not taken by the Company or any of its Affiliates in good faith in reliance upon Proper Instructions.
- 11.5. The Client irrevocably indemnifies each of the Company and Affiliates (including, for the avoidance of doubt, each Indemnified Person) against Losses suffered or incurred by any of them resulting from any action taken or not taken by the Company or any of its Affiliates in good faith in reliance upon Proper Instructions.
- 11.6. The Company shall deal with and act upon Proper Instructions in a reasonably timely manner and undertake to use reasonable endeavours to do so, but does not undertake to act on instructions immediately or on the SGme or next Business Day or to meet any specific deadline (unless otherwise agreed in writing) and shall not incur any liability for any Losses arising by reason of the length of time taken to so act upon such instructions.
- 11.7. From time to time the Company may be restricted by applicable legal and regulatory requirements and/or internal requirements from accepting

instructions from the Client. Should Company be SO

any licensed bank holding Client non-financial entity, by Money or through which each controlling person of tranSGctions have been effected; the Client) and the

the default or insolvency of any Company to set off licensed bank holding Client Money; and apply any and all (b)

19

any disclosure made by the under the Agreement, or (c) Company pursuant to clause

employees, consultants and

these Terms.

14.2. The Client irrevocably indemnifies the Company and each Affiliate (which includes the

restricted, the Company may refuse to accept instructions from the Client without giving any reasons for so doing and the Company shall not be liable for any Losses suffered or incurred thereby.

12. NON-EXCLUSIVITY

12.1 The services the Company hereunder (including trusteeship services and the provision of the Services) are not exclusive to the

Client and the Company shall be free to provide similar services to other persons. The Company shall not be deemed to have been given notice of, or to be under any duty to disclose to the Client, any fact or thing which may come to the notice of the Company or any of its Affiliates in the course of them providing similar services to other persons or in the

course of their respective businesses in any other capacity or in any manner whatsoever.

13. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

13.1. The Company may, without consulting with or notifying the Client, provide the Service notwithstanding that the Company or any of Affiliates has a relationship of any description with another

such as to place it in a position where its duty or interest in relation to that other person may conflict with its duty to the Client.

14. LIABILITY AND INDEMNITIES

14.1. To the extent permitted by applicable law and notwithstanding any other provision in the Agreement, neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates shall be responsible for any Losses suffered or incurred by the Client arising

out of any act or omission on the part of

the Company or any Affiliate in connection with the Agreement, including

any Losses suffered or incurred by the Client arising out of:

any omissions negligent, fraudulent, in wilful default or otherwise) of

> authorises the hereby

(ii)	the	Client	being	a
	nonparti	cipating	financial	institution

any

the

time Client

of for the purpose intergovernmental agreement partners, officers, directors,

amounts

owing

The United States of the Company or any Affiliate of the Company or any Affiliate of the Color o																	
America and the Cayman and "Indomnified Person" against any and all Losses inch in the calculated on a calcula	vith 1	the United S	tates of the	Company an	d each Affili	ate. each				cui	rently in	force b	etween	agents of	each, ar	nd together	
Account Tax Compliance Act of may be suffered or incurred to the United States of the Company or any Affiliate of the performance or incurred the performance of the subcontractors, or incurred as a breach, against the subcontractors, or incurred as a breach of the failure or delay in Agreement of the Subcontractors, or or incurred the subcontractors, or or incurred to the subcontractors, or or incurred as a breach of the failure or delay in Agreement or the Agreement of the Company's or or incurred as a breach of the failure or delay in Agreement of the subcontractors, or or incurred as a breach of the failure or delay in Agreement by the Client, is willful default on the part of graphy seeds as the part of the subcontractors, or or incurred as a performance of the subcontractors, or or incurred the subcontractors, or or incurred as a breach of the failure or delay in Agreement by the Client, is willful default on the part of graphy seeds and the subcontractors, or or incurred the subcontractors, or or or incurred the subcontractors, or or or incurred the subcontractors, or or incurred the subcontractors, or or incurred the subcontractors, or			and of the	company an	u ouoii i iiiiii	, e				Ar	nerica an	d the	Caymar	n an "Inc	lemnifi	ed Person'	")
the United States of the Company or any Affiliate the United States of the Company or any Affiliate the performance or non-performance thind party arising out of of any of the Company's or or in maccion with Inflate state of the performance or incompany or any Affiliate and the performance or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance of example and active incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate or declay in a performance or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors; or incompany or any affiliate (the subcontractors). This indemnity shall contract the subcontractors or incompany incompany or any affiliate and the subcontractors or incompany affiliate and the subcontractors or incompany affiliate and the subcontractors or incompany affiliate any any affiliate and incompany affiliate and incompany affili										Isla	ands rega	rding	the For	eign agai	nst any	and all I	osses
the Claimed States of the Company or any Affiliate should be a content or the claim that the claim that the calculated on a content or the claim that the content or the claim that the content or the provision of extent that such claim tha										Ac	count Tax	k Comp	oliance A	Act of ma	y be suf	fered or inc	curred
The calculated on a continuing to provide the field and party arising to provide the field of the Collision	У									the	United S	States o	of the C	Company o	r any A	ffiliate	
the performance or non-performance as a breach, negligent performance or lindemnify aball continue in force without limit in (f) any mistakes or defects of time, whether or not the Online Portal (including Service and without prejudice to any any failure to correctly other indemnify given in the Lasses compromised use of the Agreement of the not the Company has a regular of the connection with the provision of extent that such claim. The Service (including, without nitration, any and all taxes and any arises out of the Agreement of the failure or delay in Agreement, and the part of the failure or delay in Agreement, and the failure or delay in Agreement by the Client, its wilful default on the part of employees, agents or the Company or mother or not the or not the ordinary). This indemnity shall continue in force without limit in (f) any mistakes or defects of time, whether or not the ordinary part of including Service and without prejudice to any any failure to correctly other indemnity given in the ublish or manage an ompany's favour. Without limiting the appropriate acceurity code) or foregoing, the Indemnity shall include Losses compromised use of arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Agreement; Agreement; 14.3. The Indemnity shall apply whether or a manage an online part of the contract of the out the Company has a negligence. Of the Agreement in the appropriate security code) or foregoing, the Indemnity shall include Losses compromised use of arising in a connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client will advance at the company has a present and acting fault. Upon Proper Instructions given or a sequence of the company has a secretary and acting fault. The Client will advance the company has a fail to the company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penaltics, indicating the effects of any reasonable expenses (including the fee, action, investigation or charges and disbusements of proceeding that arises out of any coun	rom									Ar	nerica;	time	to				
the performance or non-performance third party arising out of of any of the Company's or or in mencion with fiffitate's duries under the Agreement or the Agreement to the in connection with the provision of extent that such claim the Service (including, without minition, any Losses suffired or incurred as a breach, negligent performance or result of a persech of the failure or delay in Agreement), SG've where Losses arise as performance of the a result of a persecution of a pe	ime (calculated o	n a					(e) anv	claim ma	ide agains	st anv	full inde	mnity basi	s) in co	nnection	
this performance with findings and the performance third party arising out of of any of the Company's or or in findiar's duties under the Agreement or the Agreement to the in connection with the provision of extent that such claim the Service (including, without mitation, any Lasses suffered or incurred as a breach, negligent performance or result of the a result of actual fault or delay in Agreement), Serve where Losses arise as performance of the a result of actual fault or or delay in Agreement Service Agreement by the Client, its wilful default on the part of cmployees, agents or the Company or Affiliate (the subcontractors; or not the the Client when using ompany is continuing to provide the the Online Portal online Portal as a result of the Client when using ompany is continuing to provide the the Online Portal as a result of the Client when using ompany is continuing to provide the the Online Portal as a result of the Client when using ompany is continuing to provide the the Online Portal as a result of the Client when using ompany is online the online Portal as a result of the Client when using ompany is favour. Without limiting the appropriate security code) or foregoing, the Indemnity shall include Losses compromised use of arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client Agreement; of the Client with advance atomic the the	ith							`	(0) (111)		_	-		-			
intention with fiftiate's duties under the Agreement or the Agreement to the in connection with the provision of extent that such claim the Service (including, without mitation, any Losses suffered or incurred as a breach, negligent performance or result of a breach of the failure or delay in		the	performano	ce	or	non-perfor	mance							•		,	
Losses suffered or incurred as a breach, negligent performance or result of a breach of the failure or delay in a hereach of the failure or delay in a hereach of actual fraud or Agreement). Stove where Losses arise as performance of the a result of actual fraud or Agreement by the Client, its wilful default on the part of employees, agents or the Company or Affiliate (the subcontractors; or Indemnity"). This indemnity shall continue in force without limit in (f) any mistakes or defects of time, whether or not the the Online Portal (including Service and without prejudice to any any failure to correctly other indemnity given in the tablish or manage an ompany's favour. Without limiting the appropriate security code) or foregoing, the Indemnity shall include Losses compromised use of arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's Agreement; been negligent or at Agreement; been negligent or at Agreement; client's indicate the company has Agreement; and other costs the Client will advance attended to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, definite in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the Gense of any overmental authority as a Client the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the Client to deliver, or as a result of the client of the client, insured by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the Client to deliver, or as a result of the client, and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	Affili	iate's duties	under the A	greement or	the Agreem	ent to the in	connection	with the provi	ision o								or in
Agreement by the Client, its wilful default on the part of employees, agents or the Company or Affiliate (the subcontractors; or Indemnity*). This indemnity shall continue in force without limit in (f) any mistakes or defects of time, whether or not the Online Portal (including Service and without prejudice to any any failure to correctly other indemnity given in the tablish or manage an ompany's favour. Without limiting the appropriate security code) or foregoing, the Indemnity shall include Losses compromised use of arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's of the Agreement; and a present or negligent performance of the not the Company has a connection with: Agreement; attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by any and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or are sult of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deficiency of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs		Losses							_	igent p			out		resu		f
Affiliate (the subcontractors; or indemnity"). This indemnity shall continue in force without limit in (f) any mistakes or defects of time, whether or not the whether or not the company is continuing to provide the the Online Portal (including Service and without prejudice to any any failure to correctly other indemnity given in the tablish or manage an ompany's favour. Without limiting the appropriate security code) or foregoing, the Indemnity shall include Losses compromised use of arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's arising in connection with connection with apply whether or a state attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by fees and other costs the Client; and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional advisor to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the			• •			arise	as	performanc	e	C	of	the		a	resu	ılt	
time, whether or not the online Portal (including Service and without prejudice to any any failure to correctly other indemnity given in the tablish or manage an ompany's favour. Without limiting the appropriate security code) or foregoing, the Indemnity shall include Losses compromised use of arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client's any breach or negligent performance Agreement; 14.3. The Indemnity shall apply whether or at Indemnitified Person accepting and acting fault. upon Proper Instructions given or at attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by any and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a seal of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs				*	we in force y	without limit	in (f) any mi	stakes or defe	cts of	_	•				lt on the	e part of	
ompany is continuing to provide the the Online Portal (including Service and without prejudice to any any failure to correctly other indemnity given in the tablish or manage an ompany's favour. Without limiting the appropriate security code) or foregoing, the Indemnity shall include Losses compromised use of arising in connection with: the Online Portal as a result of the Client': any breach or negligent performance negligence. of the Agreement; 14.3. The Indemnity shall apply whether of the enforcement of the not the Company has Agreement; been negligent or at an Indemnified Person accepting and acting fault. upon Proper Instructions given or at Occionary purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by any and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	mac		-				iii (i) aiiy iiii	stakes of dete	Ct3 01		the		Client	whe	m	ueina	
Agreement; 14.3. The Indemnity shall apply whether of the enforcement of the not the Company has Agreement; been negligent or at an Indemnified Person accepting and acting fault. upon Proper Instructions given or attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by any and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision or Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs		•	-	imiting the ap	opropriate se	curity code) o				•			-		, ,		
Agreement; 14.3. The Indemnity shall apply whether of the enforcement of the not the Company has Agreement; been negligent or at an Indemnified Person accepting and acting fault. upon Proper Instructions given or attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by any and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs		pany's favou	ır. Without li			curity code) o	or foregoing	, the Indemnit	y shal	l include	Losses co		nised us	e of		of	the
the enforcement of the not the Company has Agreement; been negligent or at an Indemnified Person accepting and acting fault. upon Proper Instructions given or 14.4. The Client will advance attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by any and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	Comp	pany's favou arising	ır. Without li	conne	ction with:		or foregoing the	, the Indemnit	y shal	l include Portal	Losses co	ompror	nised us a	e of		of	the
an Indemnified Person accepting and acting fault. upon Proper Instructions given or 14.4. The Client will advance attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by any and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	Comp	pany's favou arising any	ir. Without li	conne	ction with:		or foregoing the	, the Indemnit	y shal	l include Portal neglige	Losses co as	ompror of	nised us a	resui	t	of C	the
attorneys' purported to be given by fees and other costs the Client; and expenses incurred by and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	Comp	pany's favou arising any Agreement	ur. Without li	conne	negligent		or foregoing the	, the Indemnit	y shal	l include Portal neglige 14.3. Th	Losses co as nce.	of mnity	nised us a the	resul	t	of C	the
and expenses incurred by any and all taxes and any the Company or any and all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	(Comp	any Agreement the enforce	ir. Without li	or not the Con	negligent	performand	or foregoing the	the Indemnit Online	y shal	l include Portal neglige 14.3. Th	Losses co as nce.	of mnity	nised us a the	resul	t	of Cl	the
all related losses, claims, Affiliate in connection with liabilities, penalties, interest and the defense of any reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	Comp a)	any Agreement the enforce	breach ; ement of the attorneys'	or not the Con	negligent npany has	performand	the ce	Agree	ey shal	l include Portal neglige 14.3. Th	Losses cc as nce. nce Inder been	of mnity	nised us a the shall neglig	result apprent or will	t ly adva	of C	the
reasonable expenses (including the fees, action, investigation or charges and disbursements of proceeding that arises out of any counsel for or the provision of Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	Comp a)	any Agreement the enforce	breach ; ement of the attorneys'	or not the Con	negligent npany has	performand	the ce	Agree	ey shal	l include Portal neglige 14.3. Th	Losses co as nce. ne Inder been e	of mnity	a the shall neglig	app ent or will costs	t ly adva the	of Cl	the lient's
Services professional adviser to the under this Agreement. In Company) incurred by or the event that such asserted against the Company by an advance is made by any governmental authority as a Client, the Company or a result of either: the Affiliate as the (i) the failure by the Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	() () () ()	any's favou arising any Agreement the enforc	rr. Without li in breach ; ement of the aified Person attorneys' Client; and	or not the Con accepting ar purported	negligent negligent npany has nd acting faul to taxes	performand lt. upon Prop be and	the ce per Instruction given	Agree ons given or	y shall	l include Portal neglige 14.3. Th	Losses co as nce. ne Inden been e and and Company	of of manity Clie other	a the shall neglig	app ent or will costs ses incu	t adva the urred and	of Cl whether at annce by	the
Client to deliver, or as a result of the inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs		any Agreement the enforce an Indemn	rr. Without li in breach ; ement of the nified Person attorneys' Client; and all interest	or not the Con accepting ar purported all related and	negligent npany has d acting faul to taxes losses,	performance It. upon Propulation be and claims, the	the ce per Instruction given any defense	Agree ons given or by Affiliate of	ement;	l include Portal neglige 14.3. Th	Losses co as nce. le Inder been e nd and Company connection	of of the or an with	nised us a the shall neglig	app ent or will costs ses incu	t adva the arred and pena	of Cl whether at ance by alties,	there's
inaccuracy, inadequacy or deficiency of, the self-certification as to tax status by the Client (and if a case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs	() () () ()	any Agreement the enforce an Indemn any reasonable Services pr	breach ; ement of the attorneys' Client; and all interest expenses (ir	not the Con accepting ar purported all related and neluding the dviser to the	negligent npany has nd acting faul to taxes losses, fees, action, under this A	performance It. upon Propulation and claims, the investigation greement. In	per Instruction given any defense tor charges Company)	Agree ons given or by Affiliate of and disburser incurred by or	the in any ments of the extension of the	neglige 14.3. Th 14.4. Th a conf proceevent that:	Losses co as nce. ne Inden been e nnd and Company connection ding that	of the other or a with arises	nised us a the shall neglig ent er expens	app ent or will costs ses incu	advathe and pena	of Cl whether at ance by alties,	the lient' o
case may be, shall reimburse such advanced fees, costs)))	any Agreement the enforce an Indemn any reasonable Services proby any governing govern	breach ; ement of the aiffied Person attorneys' Client; and all interest expenses (irrofessional a evernmental at the Client	not the Con accepting ar purported all related and including the dviser to the uthority as a failure to	negligent npany has ad acting faul to taxes losses, fees, action, under this A Client, the C	performance It. upon Propulation and claims, the investigation greement. In company or and the or	per Instruction given any defense a or charges Company) a result of eit	Agree ons given or by Affiliate of and disburser incurred by or	the in any ments of the extension of the	neglige 14.3. Th 14.4. Th a conf proceevent that:	Losses co as nce. ne Inden been e nnd and Company connection ding that	of the other or a with arises	nised us a the shall neglig ent er expens	app ent or will costs ses incu	advathe and pena	of Cl whether at ance by alties,	th lient'
	Comp	any Agreement the enforce an Indemn any reasonable Services proby any gov (i)	breach ; ement of the attorneys' Client; and all interest expenses (irrofessional avernmental a the Client a inaccuracy If-certification	not the Con accepting ar purported all related and neluding the dviser to the uthority as a failure to result y, inadequacy	negligent neglig	performance It. upon Propulation and claims, the investigation greement. In company or a the or the deficiency	per Instruction given any defense or charges Company) result of eit	Agree ons given or by Affiliate of and disburser incurred by or	the in any ments of the extension of the	neglige 14.3. Th 14.4. Th a conf proceevent that:	Losses co as nce. ne Inden been e nnd and Company connection ding that	of the other or a with arises	nised us a the shall neglig ent er expens	app ent or will costs ses incu	advathe and pena	of Cl whether at ance by alties,	the lient':
and expenses in the event	Comp	any Agreement the enforce an Indemn any reasonable Services proby any gov (i)	breach ; ement of the nified Person attorneys' Client; and all interest expenses (i rofessional a vernmental a the Client a inaccuracy If-certificatio	not the Con accepting ar purported all related and neluding the dviser to the uthority as a failure to result y, inadequacy on as to tax s (and	negligent neglig	performance It. upon Propulation and claims, the investigation greement. In company or a street or the deficiency a	per Instruction given any defense or charges Company) result of eit	Agree ons given or by Affiliate of and disburser incurred by or	the in any ments of the extension of the	neglige 14.3. Th 14.4. Th a conf proceevent that:	Losses co as nce. ne Inden been e nnd and Company connection ding that	of the other or a with arises	nised us a the shall neglig ent er expens	app ent or will costs ses incu	advathe and pena	of Cl whether at ance by alties,	the lient':
	Comp	any Agreement the enforce an Indemn any reasonable Services proby any gov (i)	breach ; ement of the aified Person attorneys' Client; and all interest expenses (i rofessional a vernmental a the Client a inaccurace If-certificatio Client case	not the Con accepting ar purported all related and including the dviser to the uthority as a failure to result y, inadequacy on as to tax s (and may	negligent npany has nd acting faul to taxes losses, fees, action, under this A Client, the C by deliver, of y or status by the if be,	performance It. upon Propulation and claims, the investigation greement. In frompany or a the or the deficiency a shall	per Instruction given any defense a concharges a Company) a result of eith as of,	Agree ons given or by Affiliate of and disburser incurred by or	the in any ments of the extension of the	neglige 14.3. Th 14.4. Th a conf proceevent that:	Losses co as nce. ne Inden been e nnd and Company connection ding that	of the other or a with arises	nised us a the shall neglig ent er expens	app ent or will costs ses incu	advathe and pena	of Cl whether at ance by alties,	the lient':

		that	a	final	judgment	of
		actual	fraud	or	willful	default
		is	given	against	the	
		Company	or	Affiliate.		
	14.5. An	Indemnified	d Person	shall	not	in
		any	circumstan	ces	whatsoever	be
		liable	to	the	Client	or
		any	third	party,	whether	in
		contract	tort	(including	negligence	e), breach
		of	statutory	duty	or	
		otherwise, i	for	any:		
(a)	Losses	arising	from	or	in	
		connection		such	Indemnifie	
		acting	upon	Proper	Instructions	
		received		-	believed	-
		the	Indemnifie		to	be
		duly	authorised		delivered;	
(b)	loss	of	profit,	loss	of	
		goodwill,	loss	of	business,	loss
		of	business	opportunity	, loss	of
		anticipated	SGving,	or	any	indirect
		or	consequent	ial	damage	or
		loss	howsoever	arising;	or	
(c)	Losses	arising	from	or	in	
		connection	with	the	any	
		negligent,	defective	or	accidental	use
		of	the	Online	Portal	(except
		to	the	extent	that	the
		Losses	are	as	a	direct
		result	of	fraud	or	wilful
		default	on	the	part	of
		the	Company).			
	14.6. The	Company's	or	any	Affiliate's	total
		liability	to	a	Client	under
		or	in	connection	with	the
		Agreement,	, whether	arising	in	

			contract,	tort	(including	negligence), breach	Company's act	tual fraud or w	ilful default.				
			of	duty	or	otherwise		14.9. For	the	avoidance		doubt,	references i	
			whatsoever	arising	out	of	or	this default	Agreement shall	mean	actual a	fraud final	or non-appeala	willful ible
			in	connection	with	the		finding	to	such	effect	by	a	
			Agreement	shall	in	all		competent cou	urt in relation to	the conduc	t of the relev	ant party.		
			circumstanc	es	be	limited	to	15. 1	LEGAL PROC	EEDINGS				
			the	sum	of	Fees	paid	15.1. The	Company take	y shall any	not legal	be action	required on	to
			by	such	Client	to	the		behalf respec		the any	Client	or Gction effect	in ed
			Company	pursuant	to	the			on	behalf	of	the	Client	
			Agreement i	•	the	preceding	six		demnified to its any. If the Clien					
			(6)	months.				which in the of	the	Compa	any might	make	it,	its
		14.7. Neithe		the	Company	nor	any	for the paymer	Affilia nt of money or		its v other wav t	deleg he Compan		t
		14.7. IVEILING					-	indemnified in	n an amount ar					
			Affiliate	shall	incur	any	liability		col n anna	. Tron				
			arising	by	reason	of	any		COMMUNIC				_	
			failure	of	or	delay	caused	16.1. The write	Client to	hereby (by	authorises the	or	Company prepaid	to post)
			by	or	lack	of		or	telephone discus	the matter	Client s relatin	to g to the So	ervice, or	
			availability	of	the	Online	Portal		s on the Websi	te, at its disc	eretion.	_		
			or	the	Company's	or	an	16.2. The Concalls both	npany may rec	ord telephon	e converSGt	ions and m	ay monitor t	elephone
			Affiliate's	websites,	computer	systems	or	property of the	nd made by er e Company, an	d may be us	ed by the Co	npany in th	e event of a	lispute.
			communicat	tion	systems.				shall have the r regulatory au	-	deliver copie	s or transcri	pts of such re	cordings
		14.8. The	Company	shall	not	be		sees fit and the	comp e Client hereb	etent jurisdio y waives any		the	Comp	any
			responsible	for	any	act	or	recordings or	the transcripts as e	use vidence of a	of ny such telep	any hone conve	such SGtion.	
			failure	to	act	by	any	_	nt agrees that th					
			licensed	bank,	intermediary	7	or	1	6.6. The Co	* . *	-	*		nsfer, the
			financial	institution	at	which	a		persor	nal data	Cli for	ent's the	purpo	ses set
			Client	Account	is	maintaine	ed unless		out in this c	lause 16 or	as otherwise	required by	law or reg	ulation
			such	act	or	failure	to		applicable to includes but provided to t	is not limited	to all the in	formation re	lating to the	Client
			act	is	caused	by	the		banking rela	tionship pur	suant to the	se Terms,	including 1	or the
	other of	electronic co	ommunication	n and data to	gather infor	mation for p	urposes		Company's					
		security,	marketing, s	tatistical	analysis	and	systems		Account(s).					
16.4		developmen				h.	tla o	16.7.	 The Client' processed by 	-		will without lin	be nitation, man	age the
10.4.		telephone Company	calls and	are recorded	made for	by direct	the		Client Accou				and analyssis	hay ela a
		marketing	purposes,	the	Company	will	advise		Company, to				and analysis	•
		the	Client	at	the	beginning	of		protect the	acretop and	. mpiove iii	Compan	, J SCIVICES (
		any	such	call.	If	the	Client							
		does	not	wish	to	continue	with							
		-	g telephone ca will terminat		nt should resp	ond accordi	ngly							

16.5. The Company will only use the e-mail address provided by the Client for direct marketing purposes where the Client has provided the Company with specific prior consent to do so.

Client's interests.

- 16.8. The Company reserves the right, and the Client authorises the Company, to transfer the Client's personal data to its Affiliates, to other third party service providers as it may from time to time engage, or to any intermediary or regulated institution with regulatory or compliance obligations in relation to relationships between the Company and the Client, including but not limited to any nominee, custodian or bank used in the provision of the Service, or in connection with data storage (including but not limited to cloud storage or external data server services), anywhere in the world, including outside the Cayman Islands (the Client understands, acknowledges, accepts and agrees that where such transfer is made in relation to a jurisdiction that is not in the Cayman Islands, that jurisdiction may not have data protection laws in place that are of a similar standard to those in the Cayman Islands).
- 16.9. The Client expressly agrees that information passed to or accessible by any Affiliate for the purposes of disGster recovery, data back up or compliance with laws or regulations shall not be construed as a breach of confidentiality or Data Protection Laws.

17. DISCLOSURES

17.1. The	Company	shall	not	be	obliged	to
disclose	to	the	Client	informa	tion:	

- the disclosure of which by the Company would or might be a breach of a duty of confidence to any other person;
- (b) which comes to the notice of any of its Affiliates but does not come to the actual notice of the individual(s) responsible for providing the Service to the Client; or
- (c) the disclosure of which by the Company would or might render the Company liable to legal, regulatory or administrative SGnctions.

18. COMPLAINTS

18.1. Should you	be	disSGtisfi	disSGtisfied with		
aspects	of	the	Service,	you	
should w	rite to	the	Company	at	
banking(@EAbank.co	m or	your	other	
usual po	int of	contact.	Your	complair	nt
will	then	be	dealt	with	in
accordar procedur		the	Company's	;	complaints

19. CONFIDENTIALITY

- 19.1. Subject always to the provisions of these Terms, the Company shall not disclose to any person any details regarding the Client's transGctions or any information relating to the Client (whether acquired before or after the Agreement was contemplated and whether from the Client or a third party) SGve:
 - (a) where the Company is compelled, permitted or required to

 do so by law or

 by order of a

 court or governmental or

 administrative tribunal or regulatory authority;
 - (b) where disclosure of such records by
 the Company to a third
 party and/or it's advisors is required in connection with any
 proposed SGle, transfer or
 dispoSGl of any or all the assets of, shares in,

or business of the Company;

- (c) where disclosure is made at the Client's request or with the Client's consent, or if
 - otherwise permitted by these Terms;
- (d) where disclosure is to an Affiliate:
- (e) where failure to make such disclosure would in the opinion of the Company be

prejudicial to the interests of the Company or any of its Affiliates; or

- (f) where disclosure is made in accordance with clause 7.2 or clause 19.2.
- 19.2. The Company may at any time process and/or disclose information about the Client, the Client Money and/or the Client's tranSGctions for the following purposes:
 - (a) facilitate otherwise assist in the provision of the Service (including provision of the information banks to (i) licensed whom Cash Accounts are. be. or established, and (ii) intermediaries, financial institutions and other financial instrument counterparties connection with a Cash Equivalent Account or a Cash Equivalent Asset), or to delegates appointed by the Company from time time;
 - (b) to service any of the Client's other relationships with any Affiliate;
 - (c) to provide the Client with information regarding products and services that the Company believes may be of interest to the Client. If the Client does not wish to receive this information the Client must notify the Company in writing;
 - (d) meet the Company's and/or any Affiliates regulatory and/or financial and/or reporting other obligations in the Islands elsewhere: or Cavman or
 - (e) for the purposes of fraud prevention.

20. PRIVACY NOTICE

20.1. The Company is committed to protecting Privacy your privacy. This Notice out how and why the Company collect and process your personal information. This section applies to the collection and processing of personal information relating to

- any individual, Corporate entities, Trust etc should ensure that this section is provided to, read and considered by any individual whose Personal Data has been provided to us. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event of any conflict between the terms of this section 20 and any other terms of the Agreement, this section 20 shall take priority.
- 20.2. The Company complies with Data Protection

 Law when dealing with your Personal Data. For the purposes of the Data

 Protection Law, the Company will be the Controller.
- 20.3. The Company is not required to designate a Data Protection Officer (an appointed person who is given formal independent responsibility for data protection compliance within a business). If you have any questions about the use of your Personal Data, your data protection rights or if you want to exercise those rights, please contact us as follows: SGmantha Fletcher Watts, Regional Head of Compliance, sfletcherwatts@EAgovernance.com.
- 20.4. Personal Data that Process (a) (a) The Company gathers and processes your Personal Data in order to open your Client Account and to administer the services under Agreement and these Terms and Conditions such as your name contact details, address, telephone number. The Company may engage third party service providers to process such Personal Data behalf and on our those third parties act Processors.
 - (b) The Company may also collect and process Personal Data relating to you in connection with its on-going relationship with you, such as via correspondence and calls, and in connection

			with our	our relatio	nshi		•	When		required	for	global
			record	with ded for					tax	reporting	purposes,	including
			training	record . The					FATCA	or	CRS;	
			collect	Personal	Dε		•	То	respond	to	or	evaluate
					Di				any	queries	or	complaints in
			to .	you					relation	to	your	account;
			ensuring	•	nce		•	Interi	nal	and	external	audits
			obligati						and,	where	necesSGry,	investigations;
			PPS	number;				Estab	lishing,	exercising	or	defending
			bills,	, pho	togr				legal	claims.		
			and	verification	on si	(b)	The		legal	grounds	that	we
				of	you				rely	on	to	process
			number,	drivers verific	lic atio				your	Personal	Data	are:
			purpose	es of				that	it	is	necesSGry	to
			diligence,	we	n				comply	with	our	legal
			information	on relating	t				obligations;			
			as	an	τ			that	it	is	necesSGry	for
			of	an					the	purposes	of	the
			a	pol	itica				Company's	legitimate	interests	(processing
20.5. Purpo	ses		of	Processing	and				necesSGry	for	the	purposes of
			Data	that	yo				the	legitimate	interests	pursued by
(a)	Perso	nal	be	processed	for				a	Controller	or	by a
			following	purposes:	101				third	party,	except	where
		Proce		the	op				such	interests	are	overridden by
		11000	account	with	the				the	interests	or	fundamental
		Ectob	lishing		ide				rights	and	freedoms	of
	•	Estab	_	your					the	data	subject	which
			providing,		an				require	protection o		Personal
			your	account;					Data)	or	the	legitimate
	•	Comp	olying	with	ou				interests	of	a	third
				obligations					party	to	whom	your
			our	dealings	wi				Personal	Data	is	provided.
			including	under	apı				reisonai	Data	18	provided.

		regarding	anti-money	laundering as	nd		cou	ıTiler	Company	will	not	
		terrorist	financing,	taxation,	the			process	your	Personal	Data	
		regulation	of	collective	inve	stmen	t	for	these	purposes	if	
		schemes,	or	the	prov	ision	of	our	or	the	third	
		financial	services,	crime-detec	tion,			party's	legitimate	interests	should	
		prevention,	investigation		and			be	overridden b	ру	your	own
		prosecution,	, the	prevention	of		frau	dinterests	or	fundamenta	l	
		bribery,	anticorrupti	on,	tax			rights	and	freedoms.		
		evasion,	to	prevent	the	•	The	legitimate	interests	pursued	by	us
		provision	of	financial	and		othe	riin	this	regard	include:	
		services	to	those	who		വളിക്കു	ducting	our	business	in .	a
		be	subject	to	ecor	nomic	or	manner and	and commodealing wi		prudent ites that	
		trade	SGnctions,	in	resp	onse	o P rev	may arise; venting, inves			t, fraud or	
		legal	or	court	requ	ests	o or	other Pursuing	criminal our	activity; corpo	rate and	
		requests	from	regulatory	auth	orities	or	social respon	nsibility	objec	tives.	
		where	it	is	in		the where	;	you	are	an	
		public	interest;					individual	account	holder,	that	
•	For	direct	marketing	purposes	(that	i	is,	this	is	necesSGry	to	
		providing	information	on	prod	lucts	and	take	steps	at	your	
		services)	or	for	qual	ity	cont	rol request	prior	to	entering	
		business	and	statistical	anal	ysis,	marl	ket into	our	contract	with	
		research	or	for	tracl	king	fees	you	and	for	the	
		and	costs	or	for			performance	e	of	our	
		customer	service,	training	and		relat	ed	with	you;		
		purposes;										
•	If	applicable, p	processing the	e	fact		that					
		you	are	a	poli	tically						
		exposed	person,	to	com	ply	with					
		applicable	legal	obligations;								
•	То	communicat	te	with	you		by					
		way	of	notice	purs	suant	to					
		applicable	legislation;									

Maintaining appropriate business records,
 including maintaining appropriate registers of accountholders;

•	in certain limited	circumstance	es, your recog	gnised by the	European co	onsent.	Commi	ission as	providing			11		
•	of Data: Your prot		rsonal Data a	s Personal I	Data may be	disclosed to	is provide	d for in	an various r		iivalent in conn		of the the I	European
	BNY Mellon, Stathe extent time,		•		United States	of other co	. ,	hese es or An		tions may l Asia. If		include condents fro	the om time	to and to
	providers	appointed	by	the		we	will	ens	ure	that	Com	ipany;		
	appropriate The Money	e measures Laundering	are g Reporting	in Officer	or		place	to		protect	the	Ass	istant	Money
	Laundering	g Reporting	Officer;		privacy	and	integrity	y of						
•	The Department	for Internatio	nal Tax such	Personal Da	ta and in Co	operation as	nd other fo	reign ta	x particula	ır will coı	nply wi	th authoriti	es as rec	uired by
	our obligations u	nder Europea	n applicable	law, includin	ng FATCA o	r legislation	governing	such tra	insfers,					
	CRS;								which	may	,	include:		
•	The Cayman	Islands		Authority,				_						
	Financial Report bodies as reques			_			_	-		ınd gover	ning the	transfer wh	ich	
•	Other third partie													
	such as profession		legal • in res	pect of transf	ers to advise	ers, auditors	and IT ser	vice the	United St	ates of pi	roviders	;		
	America, ensurin	_					. TYLY	uan:	01:11				1.0	
•	To screening and (for so long as to				~	rry out mone	y the EU-U	US Priva	cy Shield	launderir	ig and id	lentity check	s and fra	ımework
	obligations		i oui iegai ilia	at it illects wi	uii				the	rea	uirement	ts	of	
•	Other members of the referred to	f the Compar	•	s regards relia	ance corpora	te group or t	he on adeo	quacy de		•				article 45
	as	affiliates,	agents	and			•		sferring	you		Personal	Data	
20.7	delegates.	11 Т	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	d E	C			•	suant to bi	_	•		A41.	
20.7	Other Data Contro where the recipie	nt ensures an	it has a susp	-		-	-					-	-	-
	(c) Further details Where a third pa			makaa ayah i	a ranget for th	sia raaard an	d tha							
	itself,	not	with	respect	to	ns regard an	id the		territor	ies to		which	your	
	you, it may cons	ider itself Per	rsonal Data m	nay be a data	Controller w	with respect	transferred	l are ava			tivity. T		•	
	as set legal basis disclosure	_	to to	comply	with		20).9. Re	etention:			We	will	
	a	legal	requiremen		******		20	,,,,	retain	you	r	Personal	Data	
			•						for	the		duration	of	account
20.8	. Transfers	Abroad						be	ing	ope	n	and	for	
									such	a		period	of	
	oup have undertake													
	opean level of prot						•	ly with o	ur obligat	ions				
EW	Group (in complia		der applicable 2016/679/E		the General I	Data Protect	ion							
	Regulatior As	such	2016/6/9/E	is										
imp	ortant to set out the				ses your									
-	onal Data may be			r r	, -									
	•	Economic		including	to									
	a	jurisdiction	n which	is	not									

PAGE 23

	claim arise.	or	dispute	that	might
20.10. You	r Rights:		You	have	the
	following	rights,	in	certain	
	circumstan	ces	and	subject	to

deal

with

relation

any

to

applicable exemptions, in your Personal Data:

relevant,

the right access your together Data, with Personal

> information about processing of our

Personal Data;

rectify the right any to inaccuracies in Data; your Personal

- the right to have any incomplete Personal completed; Data
- the right to erase your

specific Personal Data certain (in

circumstances);

the right request that your Personal Data longer no (in

particular processed for purposes

certain specific circumstances);

where the legal basis for processing is consent, right the

> withdraw to your consent at

time; any

the the right object to to use of your Personal Data or processing it where The

> determined it to Company has

be necesSGry for the purposes of its legitimate

interests;

the right data portability (in to

certain specific circumstances);

lodge with to complaint particular in supervisory authority, in

European Member of a State

> habitual residence, place of your work of the or place

if alleged infringement you consider that the processing of

21.2. Subject	to	any	applicable	laws,
regulation	s or	rules,	the	Company
may,	with	days'		notice,
assign	its	rights	and	obligations
under	the	Agreemer	nt to	an
Affiliate	or	any	third	party.

21.2 (2.1.)

		reisonai	Data	relating	ιο	you
		infringes	the	requiremen	ts.	
20.11. Consent		to	Direct	Marketing:		From
	time	to	time	the	Company	or
	any	of	the	affiliates	listed	abov
	may	send	you	information	ı about	other
	products	and	services	that	they	offer
	by	letter,	telephone,	by	email	or
	by	other	reasonable means of			
	communica	ation.		have	a	
	right	not	to	receive	such	
	information	1.	You	have	a	right
	to	withdraw	this	consent	at	any
	time.		However,	your	withdrawal	lof
	consent	will	not	affect	the	
	lawfulness	of	processing	based	on	conse
	before	its	withdrawal			

Data

relating

Personal

$22.\ ACCOUNT$ CLOSURE, TERMINATION AND CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

- 22.1. If the Agreement is ended in accordance with this clause 21, the Client Accounts will be closed and all other ancillary agreements between the Client and the Company will also end.
- ove 22.2. The Client shall be obliged to settle all fees, commissions and other charges owed to the Company.
 - 22.3. The Company has the right to deduct any outstanding interest and/or charges that have not yet been applied to the Client Accounts and shall be entitled to collect such amounts, before returning
 - the outstanding balance(s) to the Client. If someone tries to make a payment into a Client Account after it has been closed, the Company will take reasonable steps to return the payment to them.
- 22.4. The Client acknowledges that termination of the Agreement and/or the closure of a Client Account must be ent

¹ approved and instructed in writing to the Company by a Director of the Company, as authorized by the Client's Articles of Association to operate the Client Accounts in such a manner at the date of closure, and in accordance with and subject to such terms and conditions as may be prescribed by the Company for such Client Account (as each may be amended,

supplemented and/or substituted from time to time).

22.5. The Company may refuse to provide the Service or to accept monies or decide to withdraw the provision of the Service at any time, at the Company's sole and absolute discretion without giving any reason whatsoever.

ASSIGNMENT

21.1. The Client may not assign or transfer any of its rights or Agreement without obligations under the the prior written consent of the Company.

Should the provision of the Service be withdrawn, the Company shall incur no liability for

remuneration,

the Client will be required to provide the Company with instructions as	to
Company with instructions as	to
1 7	to
where to transfer any	
Client Money that is	
held at that time.	
Should the Client fail	to
provide the Company with	
such instructions, then all	
Client Money will be	
held by the Company	as
bare trustee and the	
Company will be entitled	to
levy charges for so doing.	
22.11. No penalty will be imposed	
on the Client on	
termination of the Agreement	
but the Company shall	
be entitled to charge	
the Client (i) any	

fees

or

any	Losse				expenses	which	may	be	that the Clien	-			. 11		(2)
22.6.	Th the	ie			outstanding	, (ii)	for	any	Agree Company	ment may at	be any	time	nated by		(i)
	nmediatel				expenses	necesSGrily	incurred	by	on such later tin	written ne as specific	notice ed in such no	effective	on the Client	on 30 c	davs'
	writter				the	Company	in	terminating	notice such	effective later	on time	receipt	(or	ecified	in
	such				the	Agreement	or	directly	notice).				1		
22.7. Upor	reason,	,			attributable	to	the	termination of	termination of	of Company	the shall	Agreement return	for the	any Cli	y ient
	Money	,			the	Agreement,	and	(iii)	to Company	the no	Client, longer	such acts	that as	the bar	
	trustee				for	any	Losses	necesSGrily	in	respect	of	that	Client		oney.
22.8. The A	Agreemei	nt			realised	in	settling	or	shall termina	te automatic	ally in the ev	ent that:			
(a)	a				concluding	outstanding t	ranSGctions		trustee in bar						
	the any			22.12. To	the	extent	permitted	by	liquidator is Client or any other equival	of its prope	rty is subject	to	any of its	propert	ty, or
(b)	the				law,	clauses	14	and	Client is, or	-			bts as they	fall d	ue or
(-)	is				19	will	continue	in							
					full	force	and	effect	deemed the	to laws	be of	insolvent any	under		
						with		other	jurisdiction t	o which the 0	Client is subj	ject;			
(c)	a the				(together		any		distress has b whole or	een levied up	on or other o	execution has	been effe	cted ag	ainst
					provisions	necesSGry	to	make	any	part	of	the			
					them	operable)	despite	termination of	f property	of	the	Client;			
(4)	41								Cli t t . l			4 4 .			
(d)	the be	22	NOT	ICEG	the	Agreement.			Client takes resident, in a permitted or	country wh	ere the Comp	any is not	dents of th	at cou	intry;
(d)		23.	NOT			Ü				country wh	ere the Comp	any is not	dents of th	at cou	ıntry;
(d) (e)	be	23.1	. Any	notices	given	pursuant	to	these	resident, in a permitted or statute,	country wh authorised to regulation	ere the Comp provide ser or	any is not	dents of the		intry;
,,	be or		. Any			Ü	to to:	these registered	resident, in a permitted or	country wh authorised to	ere the Comp o provide ser	oany is not rvices to resi			-
,,	be or any	23.1 Ter	. Any	notices shall	given be	pursuant delivered	to:		resident, in a permitted or statute, the or	regulation Cayman any action renders	or or Islands other	oany is not rvices to resi other applicable provis	enactments	nt	in
,,	be or any	23.1	. Any	notices shall	given be Company, office; Client,	pursuant delivered at and at	to: its	registered	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or	regulation Cayman any	or or Islands other	oany is not rvices to resi other applicable	enactmen	nt Ser	in
,,	be or any	23.1 Ter	Any ems (a)	notices shall the	given be Company, office;	pursuant delivered at and	to: its	registered	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or	country wh authorised to regulation Cayman any action renders any	or or Islands other steepart	oany is not rvices to resi other applicable provis	enactments	nt Ser	in all vices
,,	be or any	23.1 Ter	Any ems (a)	notices shall the	given be Company, office; Client, address records or,	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if	to: its the in the deemed	registered last the Company appropriate by	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd:	country wh authorised to regulation Cayman any iction renders any Termina of	or Islands other street the part	oany is not rvices to resi other applicable provis	enactments	nt Ser	in all vices
,,	be or any	23.1 Ter	Any ems (a)	notices shall the	given be Company, office; Client, address records	pursuant delivered at and at shown of	to: its the in the deemed in y	registered last the Company	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd:	country wh authorised to regulation Cayman any oction renders any Termina of	or Islands other street the part	oany is not rvices to resi other applicable provis	enactments	nt Ser	in all vices
,,	be or any	23.1 Ter	Any ems (a)	notices shall the the	given be Company, office; Client, address records or, the sole on	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if Company discretion, b	to: its the in the deemed in yy Website,	registered last the Company appropriate by its publication	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd:	country wh authorised to regulation Cayman any ection renders any Termina of	or Islands other street the Component of the part tion the hall	oany is not rvices to resi other applicable provis	enactments	nt Ser	in all vices
,,	be or any	23.1 Ter	Any ems (a)	notices shall the the	given be Company, office; Client, address records or, the sole on be	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if Company discretion, b	to: its the in the deemed in by Website, by	registered last the Company appropriate by its publication email on	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd: 22.9. Agreement be the completion	country wh authorised to regulation Cayman any iction renders any Termina of s with prejudice	or Islands other set the part tion the hall hout to any	ony is not rvices to resi other applicable provis of	enactments on of the	nt Ser unla	in all vices wful.
,,	be or any	23.1 Ter	. Any ms (a) (b)	notices shall the the	given be Company, office; Client, address records or, the sole on be post be	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if Company discretion, be the sent and received	to: its the in the deemed in yy Website, by shall in	registered last the Company appropriate by its publication email or be the	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd: 22.9. Agreement be the completion in the process Company sh	regulation Cayman any iction renders any Termina of s with prejudice of s of being a all not accep	or Islands other stee the part tion the hall tout to any tranged. After tay monie	ony is not rvices to resi other applicable provis of	enactmentsion of the	Ser unla	in all vices wful.
,,	be or any	23.11 Terr and by dee case	. Any ms (a) (b)	notices shall the the	given be Company, office; Client, address records or, the sole on be post be email	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if Company discretion, be the sent and received or	to: its the in the deemed in by Website, by shall in publication	registered last the Company appropriate by its publication email or be the immediately	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd: 22.9. Agreement be the completion in the process	regulation Cayman any iction renders any Termina of s with prejudice of s of being a all not accep	or Islands other stee the part tion the hall tout to any tranged. After tay monie	ony is not rvices to resi other applicable provis of	enactmentsion of the	Ser unla	in all vices wful.
,,	be or any	23.11 Terr and by dee case	. Any ms (a) (b)	notices shall the the	given be Company, office; Client, address records or, the sole on be post be email	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if Company discretion, be the sent and received	to: its the in the deemed in by Website, by shall in publication	registered last the Company appropriate by its publication email or be the immediately	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd: 22.9. Agreement be the completion in the process Company sh	regulation Cayman any iction renders any Termina of s with prejudice of s of being a all not accep	or Islands other stee the part tion the hall tout to any tranged. After tay monie	ony is not rvices to resi other applicable provis of	enactment of the state of the s	Ser unla	in all vices wful.
(e)	be or any 22.10.	23.11 Terr and by dee case	. Any ms (a) (b)	notices shall the the may prepaid to of nderstands,	given be Company, office; Client, address records or, the sole on be post be email acknowledges	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if Company discretion, be the sent and received or s, accepts and	to: its the in the deemed in yy Website, by shall in publication d agrees that	registered last the Company appropriate by its publication email or be the immediately	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd: 22.9. Agreement be the completion in the process Company sh transGetions itself nationality,	regulation Cayman any iction renders any Termina of s with prejudice of s of being a all not accept on behalf of as residency, so	or Islands other tion the hall hout to any rranged. After the Client.	other applicable provis of transGction er the termin s and will n the s and source	enactment of the sion of the sion already ation takes ot arrange ide of wealth	Ser unla	in all vices wful.
(e)	be or any 22.10. in hours	23.1 Ter and by dee case	. Any ms (a) (b) med e Client u the after	may prepaid to of understands, a case posting	given be Company, office; Client, address records or, the sole on be post be email acknowledges	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if Company discretion, be the sent and received or s, accepts and	to: its the in the deemed in yy Website, by shall in publication d agrees that	registered last the Company appropriate by its publication email or be the immediately	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd: 22.9. Agreement be the completion in the process Company sh transGctions itself nationality, existic Company m	regulation Cayman any iction renders any Termina of s with prejudice of s of being a all not accept on behalf of as residency, so ng and	or Islands other tion the hall hout to any rranged. After the Client.	other applicable provis of transGction er the termin s and will n the s and source ivated clients	enactmentsion of the sion already ation takes of arrange ide of wealth s. The	Ser unla	in all vices wful. t, the inther
(e) and 72	be or any 22.10. in hours	23.1 Ter and by dee case The	. Any ms (a) (b) med e Client u the after	may prepaid to of case posting	given be Company, office; Client, address records or, the sole on be post be email acknowledges of	pursuant delivered at and at shown of if Company discretion, be the sent and received or s, accepts an prepaid	to: its the in the deemed in yy Website, by shall in publication d agrees that	registered last the Company appropriate by its publication email or be the immediately in	resident, in a permitted or statute, the or jurisd: 22.9. Agreement be the completion in the process Company sh tranSGctions itself nationality, existic Company manual specific company manual spec	regulation Cayman any iction renders any Termina of s with prejudice of s of being a all not accept on behalf of as residency, so ng and	or Islands other s the part tion the hall nout to any monie the Client.	other applicable provis of transGction er the termin s and will n the s and source ivated clients	enactments of the sion of the sion of the sion takes of arrange side of wealth s. The the Clients	Ser unla	in all vices wful. t, the inther

all appropriate measures including freezing the Client Money or terminating the relevant Client Account if the

Company is unable to or is prevented from completing SGtisfactory due diligence procedures within a reasonable period in respect of the Client. The Company reserves the right to charge additional fees on a time spent basis if the Company is required to freeze, monitor or terminate an account in default of any of the above requirements.

24.2. The Client agrees to notify the Company should the Client change any of the Client's contact details

(including without limitation relocating to a different country). The Client acknowledges that such notification may result in the Company requiring additional or

enhanced due diligence information and may prevent the Company from being able to continue to provide the Service to the Client.

25. MISCELLANEOUS

25.1. The Client understands, acknowledges, accepts, agrees and confirms that the Client has not in entering into the Agreement, relied on any representation or documents other than as contained in the Agreement.

25.2. If	any	provision	or	clause	of	these
	Terms	is	or	becomes	void	or
	unenforcea	ble	in	whole	or	in
	part	it	shall	not	affect	the
	invalidity	of	the	remaining	provisions	and
	clauses	of	these	Terms.		

25.3. The relationship between the Client and the

Company in respect of the Service is as described in the

Agreement, which supersedes all previous agreements between the Parties (if any)

concerning that relationship. For the avoidance of doubt, in performing its obligations under this Agreement, the

Company is acting solely for and on behalf of the Client and

no contractual or service relationship shall be deemed to be

established hereby between the Company (or an Affiliate) and any other person.

- 25.4. The Company shall have no duties or responsibilities whatsoever, except such duties and responsibilities as are specified in the Agreement, and, subject to applicable law or regulation, no covenant or obligation shall be implied against the Company in connection with the Agreement.
- 25.5. These Terms may be amended from time to time by the Company giving notice to the Client and clause 22 shall apply to such notice.
- 25.6. These Terms shall be binding upon the Client and its permitted assigns (if any) and its successors in title.
- 25.7. The failure of the Company to exercise any right or remedy provided by these Terms or by law or any delay in the exercise thereof shall not constitute a waiver of such

right or remedy or any other rights or remedies. No single or partial exercise of a right or remedy provided by these Terms or by law

shall prevent any further exercise of such right or remedy or the exercise of another right or remedy.

25.8. Neither the Company nor any of its Affiliates shall be liable to the Client in respect of any delay in performing or inability to perform the Service or

loss of or damage to any documents in the possession of the Company arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by circumstances beyond its reasonable

control, including without limitation, an act of God or public enemy, war, insurrections or

riots, fire, flood, explosion, earthquake, hurricane, accident, epidemic or quarantine restrictions, acts of government or

any other governmental agency, strikes, labour cesSGtion, slow-down or interruption of work due to any other cause (whether of the kind mentioned in this subclause 24.8 or not) and the Company shall not be liable or have any responsibility

of any kind for any Losses suffered or incurred by the Client.

25.9. The Parties hereby agree that each Affiliate who is not a party to these Terms (a "Third Party") has the express right to enforce the

contractual terms comprising these Terms pursuant to the terms of The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Law, 2014. Notwithstanding any term of these Terms, the consent of or notice to any Third Party shall not be required for any termination, rescission or agreement to any variation, waiver, assignment, novation, release or settlement under these Terms at any time.

25.10. References in the Agreement to actual fraud or wilful default mean a finding to such effect by a

competent court in relation to the conduct of the relevant party.

26. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

These Terms shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Client hereby

submits	to	the	exclusive	jurisdiction	of
the Courts	of	the	Cayman	Islands	in
all matters	relating	to	the	Agreement.	